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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Two-story structure (originally a dwelling): octagonal or
eight-sided, originally constructed of concrete (lime, cement
and gravel), Exterior walls are covered with clapboards.
Architectural style: classical, influenced by Italianate.
There is a small wooden cupola, also octagonal, surmounting the
building. The sloping shingled roof has eaves projecting
beyond the walls. The fenestration is simple: each of the
eight walls or sides of the building is pierced on each floor
by paired double-hung windows (except for the front wall on
the ground story, which contains the entrance). The entrance
is deeply recessed within the wall and contains double door; it
is sheltered by a simple porch, of classical style; two columns
and two pilasters, all square, support a sloping roof also
shingled. There are oblong wood (simulating) stone quoins at
each corner of the building, reaching from ground to roof.
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STATEMENT OF SiGNIFICANCE

Octagon Houses throughout the United States owe their origin
and vogue, during the 1850s and 1860s to the publication of a
book by Orson_Squire Fowler of New York, in 1848, "A Home for
A11". fThis book was intended to stimulate the building of
houses by Americans on a new and rational plan: the octagonal
plan, designed to provide eight rooms on each floor (of two),
and advocated as the most healthful because it gave a maximum
of sunlight to the rooms, each receiving light at some period
of the day. At one time at least five octagonal houses existed
in San Francisco, of which the Colonial Dames Octagon House is
one of the last two and the only one maintained and open for the
public,

It was built in 1861 by William C. McElroy and wife. McElroy,

a miller, had arrived in San Francisco in 1851 and had been
successful in his trade, His wife, Harriet, had bought the

lot (on the east line of Gough Street) from Charles and Harry
Gough, after whom the street was named. The McElroys lived

in the house until 1891, For some three years Daniel 0'Connell,

a noted poet of the day lived in the house and a’Elng this period
the house was the site of gatherings of the writers and artists
of the city.

In_ 1932 the house was saved from demolition by the Colonial
Dames, who bought it, removed it to the west side of the street
and had it extensively restored. The restoration was under the
direction of Warren Perry F.A.I1.A., former chairman of the
Department of Architecturé at the University of California. The
building is now used as a headquarters for the Colonial Dames in
the State of California; and also serves as a museum or place of
display of predominantly 18th century furniture, manuscripts, and
historic mgmentos.
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